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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Good evening,

          3  everyone.  I want to welcome you to this evening's

          4  hearing on the City Council's Committee on

          5  Transportation.  My name is John Liu, and I have the

          6  privileges of Chairing this Committee.

          7                 Tonight is slightly different from

          8  the usual format that we have a public hearing of

          9  this Committee.  We usually hear bills at City Hall,

         10  but I think due to the special nature of this bill

         11  that we are considering today, we wanted to make

         12  sure that we had the maximum number of people

         13  possible that have an interest in this bill and

         14  would be able to testify on this.  And so with the

         15  suggestion of Councilman Mike McMahon, we decided to

         16  have a hearing out here.  This is an official

         17  hearing; every thing said will be officially

         18  transcripted to the City Council.

         19                 And I will ask Mike McMahon the lead

         20  sponsor of this bill to talk about this, but I

         21  wanted to, just briefly, talk about some of the

         22  things that this bill would do.

         23                 Now the first thing that this bill

         24  does sister that it sets forth a minimum service

         25  schedule for the Staten Island Ferry.  The schedule
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          2  set forth in the bill seeks to more adequately serve

          3  demand.  This minimum schedule provides for greater

          4  service than is currently in place in recognition of

          5  the needs of individuals seeking to travel by Mass

          6  Transit, between Staten Island and Manhattan.  And I

          7  would add that we certainly want to encourage people

          8  to take Mass Transit.

          9                 Secondly, the bill provides for

         10  certain allowable service disruptions, such as

         11  mechanical, malfunction, or severely inclement

         12  weather.  However, there is accountability built

         13  into the bill.  Service must be restored within 48

         14  hours of the disruption, and a written report

         15  detailing the reasons for the disruption must be

         16  submitted to the Speaker of the City Council by the

         17  Department of Transportation.  If services are

         18  disrupted for longer than 48 hours, the report must

         19  indicate why and what is being done to resolve the

         20  problem.

         21                 Service disruption for longer than 30

         22  days would require the approval of the City Council

         23  by a local law.  Approval by local law is also

         24  required for any diminution of service.

         25                 The Staten Island Ferry, as I think
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          2  most or all of you well know, is Staten Island's

          3  principal means of mass transit to the rest of the

          4  City.  It is the linchpin by which most Staten

          5  Islanders travel to and from work, as well as to

          6  many other destinations.  Because it is the primary

          7  means of public transportation for so many New

          8  Yorkers, service should be at a level that, at

          9  least, meets demand.  And that is the purpose of

         10  Intro. 56 to ensure that Staten Islanders have an

         11  appropriate, and reliable, and frequent option of

         12  Mass Transit.

         13                 And again, I think mass transit is

         14  something that we want to encourage in this City,

         15  and we want to make sure that every New Yorker,

         16  Staten Islander, and otherwise, has all of the

         17  available options to get to and from their jobs.

         18                 I would like to, before I ask

         19  Councilman McMahon to come up and explain to us the

         20  bill in more detail I want to say that we are joined

         21  by Council Member Diana Reyna from Brooklyn, and my

         22  friend, Andy Lanza from here in Staten Island, as

         23  well.

         24                 I just want to thank the staff of the

         25  Transportation Committee of the City of Council.  We
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          2  have to my right, Mitch Schwartz, the Legislative

          3  Counsel to the Committee.  And we are also joined by

          4  Alissa Batson, the Policy Analyst for the Committee,

          5  as well as Chimo Alchberry (phonetic) the Financial

          6  Analyst for the Transportation Committee.

          7                 Mike, would you talk to us about the

          8  bill?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Thank you,

         10  Mr. Chairman, John Liu, and good evening to you all.

         11    I will not speak long, I think the Chairman laid

         12  out very succinctly the details of what this bill

         13  seeks to do, and I will not speak long because we

         14  are here to hear from you all tonight, as well as

         15  the Department of Transportation.

         16                 But I will say this, we know that

         17  this is a time, a very difficult financial

         18  circumstances in the City of New York, we are aware

         19  of that.  But we are not at the table asking for any

         20  luxury, anything fancy, anything more than the most

         21  basic, simple, reliable, dependable, mass

         22  transportation, to allow the Staten Island to be

         23  connected to the rest of the City of New York.

         24                 We are not asking to have this

         25  service to provide us with anything more than a way
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          2  for us to get to work, for a way for us to get home

          3  from work, for a way for us to enjoy the amenities

          4  of City life, and not to be shut out and not to have

          5  to take a car. And it is time for the Administration

          6  to realize that, and that is why we are so grateful

          7  to you, Mr. Chairman.  I am very grateful to my

          8  colleagues, Diana Reyna, and of course, Andrew Lanza

          9  is here. And also we have to thank the County Clerk,

         10  Steven Fialla and his staff who allowed us to use

         11  this room, Court Officer, Richard Steffanelli, who

         12  is here on overtime, as well as the Council staff

         13  and the Sergeant- At- Arms, of course, Ralph and

         14  Geena, and we want to thank you very much for coming

         15  out.

         16                 I want to say one other thing,

         17  though, just when we put out the bill to say, you

         18  know, it is time to make night time service

         19  guaranteed every half- hour, we are not talking

         20  about 15 minutes, every 20 minutes, the

         21  Administration turned around and proposes to

         22  privatize the night time service, I am in shock over

         23  that.

         24                 I do not know about you, but do you

         25  think that private ferries will provide us with the
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          2  safety?  On a night like this, at two o'clock in the

          3  morning, do you want to be on a Department of

          4  Transportation Ferry manned by the people who know

          5  how to run those ferries, the deck hands and the

          6  marine engineers, or do you want to have a private

          7  ferry blowing in the wind not being safe?

          8                 And the private ferries, as far as we

          9  know, are not handicapped accessible, and we do not

         10  know that there will be a police officer on those

         11  ferries.  So when you come up here and testify,

         12  remember that we are not only fighting for the

         13  basics, we are now fighting for the very essence and

         14  core of mass transportation on Staten Island, and

         15  that is a good, reliable service that we do not

         16  think, we do not say we are entitled to it or we

         17  deserve it, it is a basic need.  And it is not one

         18  where cost is the issue, the question is access to

         19  mass transportation.

         20                 Ladies and gentlemen, I will not

         21  speak anymore, we are here to hear from you tonight,

         22  as well as from the Department of Transportation.

         23  So having said that, let's get on with the hearing.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  At this point I

         25  would like to invited the representatives of the New
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          2  York City Department of Transportation to come up to

          3  the witness table and give us your comments.

          4                 MS. HORSCH:  Good evening, Chairman

          5  Liu, members of the Transportation Committee, and

          6  Council Members McMahon and Lanza.  My name is Andra

          7  Horsch, and I am the Director of Intergovernmental

          8  Affairs at the New York City Department of

          9  Transportation.  Thank you for the opportunity to

         10  discuss Intro. 56, which sets forth a daily minute-

         11  by- minute schedule for ferry service between the

         12  St. George and Whitehall terminals, and which most

         13  notably mandates half- hour overnight ferry service.

         14                 First, let me state that the

         15  transportation needs of Staten Island residents are

         16  of the utmost importance to DOT, and that we have

         17  devoted an extensive amount of planning resources to

         18  seeing that these needs are met.  This attention is

         19  evident from various projects designed to improve

         20  the quality of transportation, to, from, and

         21  throughout Staten Island, including our various

         22  roadway projects, the 400 million investment in

         23  three new ferries, and the reconstruction of the

         24  spectacular terminals at White Hall and New York St.

         25  George.  When the terminal at St. George is
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          2  complete, Staten Island will benefit from a state-

          3  of- the- art, world class, intermodal

          4  transportation, and commercial hub designed to

          5  appeal to and attract visitors, as well as

          6  accommodate commuters.             That being said,

          7  I now turn to the subject bill, Intro. 56.

          8  Although, this bill is undoubtedly a well meaning

          9  attempt to improve upon the overnight transit

         10  options available to Staten Islanders, DOT cannot

         11  support this bill.  This bill would require

         12  budgetary resources that are not available during

         13  this time of fiscal constraint.  Intro. 56 proposed

         14  to amend the Administrative Code and the relation of

         15  Staten Island Ferry Service to codify and regulate

         16  its operating schedule and establish half hourly

         17  service at any time, regardless of need.  This bill

         18  would also make DOT accountable to the Council for

         19  any disruption in service, including a mandate that

         20  any service disruption in excess of 30 days, or any

         21  proposed reduction in service would require Council

         22  approval by local law.

         23                 At present, the weekday ferry from

         24  Staten Island and Whitehall runs every 20 minutes

         25  from 6:00 a.m. To 8:00 a.m., every 15 minutes from
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          2  8:00 a.m. To 9:00 a.m., every 30 minutes from 9:00

          3  a.m. To 3:30 p.m., and as you know, a similar

          4  frequency is achieved to meet our P.M. Rush hour

          5  demand.  From 7:00 p.m. Until midnight, the ferry

          6  runs every half- hour, from midnight until 6:00 a.m.

          7  The ferry runs every hour.  On weekends, the ferry

          8  runs every half- hour from noon to 7:00 p.m.  The

          9  weekend ferry runs every hours at all other times.

         10  In total, the Staten Island Ferry operates 648 trips

         11  on a weekly basis.

         12                 The frequency of ferry service is

         13  responsive to passenger demand.  The current demand

         14  specifically overnight ridership does not justify

         15  increasing such frequency beyond the present

         16  service.  The boats that are used to provide

         17  overnight service, our Austen- class boats, have a

         18  passenger capacity of 1,280.  Our findings show that

         19  the average number of passengers on each overnight

         20  boat is 146, which translates into a load factor of

         21  only 11 percent.

         22                 The number of late- night passengers

         23  utilizing the ferry ranged from a low of 23

         24  passengers from St. George at 2:00 a.m. On a

         25  Thursday in February to 572 passengers from
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          2  Whitehall at 1:30 a.m. On a Saturday in June.  The

          3  average daily ridership on the Staten Island Ferry

          4  between Whitehall and St. George is 65,000

          5  passengers.  Overnight ridership averages just 1,760

          6  passengers, or only 2.7 percent of the daily

          7  average.

          8                 In addition, the extra service as

          9  proposed in this bill is imprudent given the City's

         10  current fiscal crisis. Overnight Staten Island Ferry

         11  service, from 12:00 a.m. To 5:30 a.m., consisting of

         12  six trips in each direction using one Austen class

         13  vessel costs the City approximately $2.2 million

         14  annually with a corresponding cost per passenger of

         15  $3.40 per trip. Implementing additional half- hourly

         16  service, as dictated by Intro. 56, would increase

         17  the cost of overnight service by an additional $3

         18  million annually to $5.2 million and would inflate

         19  the cost per passenger to over $8.00 per trip.

         20  Included in this calculation is the cost of an

         21  additional 540,000 gallons of fuel that would be

         22  spent annually and the extra 30 crew members and

         23  support staff that DOT would be required to hired in

         24  order to comply with U.S. Coast Guard regulations.

         25                 This bill would also escalate other
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          2  related costs. The expanded schedule would increase

          3  the wear and tear on our boats, and wold require the

          4  agency to accelerate the replacement of Austen-

          5  class boats by approximately 5- years to 2011, at a

          6  cost of approximately $25 million per boat.  This

          7  bill would additionally require doubling of NYPD

          8  coverage on our boats, further stretching already

          9  strained City resources.  Also, due to the age of

         10  the existing Staten Island Ferry fleet and our

         11  mandated U.S. Coast Guard maintenance schedules,

         12  doubling our overnight schedule would force us to

         13  use our largest boats, the 6,000 passenger Barberi

         14  class, during a four month period each year.

         15                 Lastly, the MTA's bus, subway and

         16  Staten Island Railway schedules are all built around

         17  meeting Staten Island Ferry departures and arrivals.

         18    If Staten Island Ferry service were doubled during

         19  the overnight period, these entities would have to

         20  determine if they could incur the additional costs

         21  associate with the corresponding increase in their

         22  schedules.  If not, any additional benefit derived

         23  from increased ferry service would be eliminated, as

         24  there would be no transit links to serve the

         25  passengers on additional boats, especially those at
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          2  St. George.

          3                 In conclusion, while this bill

          4  represents a well meaning attempt to expand

          5  overnight ferry service, the passenger demand does

          6  not warrant the additional 3 million annual cost

          7  that DOT alone would need to implement the added

          8  service.  Funding is simply not available during

          9  this difficult, fiscal time.

         10                 Once again, thank you for the

         11  opportunity to testify before you this evening.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Is she

         13  taking questions?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very much

         15  for your testimony this evening.  I would like to

         16  invite Senator Seymour Lachman to come and testify

         17  on this bill.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  I just want

         19  to say, Mr. Chairman, and I hope, Ms. Horsch, she

         20  will take the message back to the Commissioner, that

         21  I am somewhat disappointed that you are only, and

         22  this is not against you personally, but that you are

         23  only reading testimony tonight and not taking

         24  questions.  Because normally the people should know

         25  the way a Council hearing works, is that somebody
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          2  from DOT would come here and we would be able to

          3  challenge you with these numbers and your figures.

          4                 I have been waiting since January for

          5  written documentation as to the numbers as to

          6  ridership.  We were told, of course, it was two

          7  million.  Now tonight, you are saying it is three

          8  million.  We wanted to ask questions about

          9  privatization, we want to ask questions about when

         10  cars will come back on the ferry, and we were under

         11  the impression that DOT knew that, and we are very

         12  disappointed that someone is not here who can answer

         13  those questions.  And I think that this is a formal

         14  City Council hearing. We are considering

         15  legislation, and it has the same weight and bearing

         16  as a hearing would have at City Hall.  And for the

         17  Department to treat this in a way that just to read

         18  a statement and not take questions, and again, not

         19  against you, I am not shooting the messenger, but I

         20  hope you will take that message back that it is very

         21  disappointing, and I am sure to the people of Staten

         22  Island who support the ferry, it sends the wrong

         23  message.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you,

         25  Councilman McMahon, and we have some comments from
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          2  Council Member Lanza.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA:  Thank you.

          4  Director, I am going to try and cheat here a little,

          5  take the lead, or follow my colleague, Councilman

          6  McMahon here, and try to ask a question in the form

          7  of a message to take back to the DOT.  And I just

          8  want to echo the remarks made by Councilman McMahon

          9  here.

         10                 The message that I would like you to

         11  take back is, while we understand that what we are

         12  seeking to do here will have a financial impact and

         13  that it will cost money.  And whether it is 2

         14  million or 3 million dollars, for the 1,760

         15  passengers that you speak of, this is the only way

         16  for them to get home, this is really a quality of

         17  life issue.  And I can tell you as somebody who

         18  utilized the ferry from Great Kills traveling to

         19  Manhattan for many, many years, both University and

         20  Law School and then the various jobs, lots of jobs,

         21  keep getting kicked out of them, but, you know, when

         22  you miss the boat at night, you miss the boat.

         23                 And I would submit to you that there

         24  are many more folks out there that would be getting

         25  out of their cars and onto the ferry, which is
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          2  something we all seek to do, if the service was

          3  something that was practicable and feasible.

          4  Because when you miss the boat at night, that means

          5  you are going to get home an hour, an hour and a

          6  half, perhaps two hours later, and that is time away

          7  from your family, and that is time that cuts into

          8  your life.

          9                 And so, while we understand that this

         10  has a fiscal impact, and we understand that there is

         11  a budget crisis here, as Councilman McMahon said,

         12  this is a basic service.  And we all understand that

         13  when times are tough, we cut out luxuries.  But you

         14  cannot turn off the water, you cannot turn off the

         15  electricity, and you cannot turn off the gas to heat

         16  your homes, and this is just like this.  This is a

         17  basic service for people on Staten Island, and it is

         18  a quality of life issue, and it is very important.

         19                 So we ask that you take that message

         20  back.  We understand it costs money, but the message

         21  that I think we are asking you to bring back is that

         22  you re- prioritize and understand that this is a

         23  basic service for thousands upon thousands of people

         24  that are vital to the economy of New York City.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

          3  Member Lanza. And I think that the points that my

          4  two colleagues have made thus far, are excellent

          5  points.  And in fact, that is why we have a City

          6  Council, because we have City Council members who

          7  live in the neighborhoods that we represent, that

          8  take mass transit to and from our work, including

          9  that of City Hall.  We have members from Staten

         10  Island, who do take the ferry and understand the

         11  necessity of having this mass transit option.  And

         12  so I certainly want to applaud my colleagues here,

         13  and to say to the DOT that we certainly appreciate

         14  the testimony that the Department has provided.  But

         15  this is something that is not simply relegated to

         16  that of being a costly item.  This is, again, as my

         17  colleagues have stated, this is a necessity for

         18  close to half a million New Yorkers, New Yorkers no

         19  less than any other New Yorker.

         20                 And I would just finally add that

         21  Intro. 56, this bill that we are considering today

         22  that would increase this transit option to the level

         23  that is necessary for Staten Islanders, is sponsored

         24  by not only Council Member McMahon and Andy Lanza,

         25  but also by James Oddo, by Tony Avella, Council
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          2  Members Baez, Barron, Comrie, DeBlasio, Fidler,

          3  Gennaro, Gioia, Jackson, Jennings, Katz, Moskowitz,

          4  Nelson, Perkins, Provenzano, Quinn, Recchia, Reed,

          5  Reyna, Rivera, Sanders, Seabrook, Sears, Serrano,

          6  Stewart, Vann, Weprin, Yassky, Gallagher, Golden,

          7  Addabbo, Clarke, and Liu.  And so I think it has got

          8  a little bit of support in the City Council.

          9                 I would like to have the Senator give

         10  us his wise comments, if I could only untangle this

         11  wire.

         12                 SENATOR LACHMAN:  Thank you, it is a

         13  pleasure being here this evening.  Chairman Liu and

         14  I have met before on a hearing with Senator

         15  Montgomery, and I had the chance to meet him and

         16  realize his commitment to the issues of

         17  transportation.  I am delighted that Councilman

         18  Lanza and Councilman Reyna are here tonight, but I

         19  also want to express my appreciation to Councilman

         20  McMahon for bringing this about.

         21                 I am a State Senator from the 23rd

         22  Senatorial District, and my name is Seymour Lachman,

         23  and you can spell it anyway you want to, L- A- K- M-

         24  A- N, L- A- C- H- M- A- N, L- A- K- M- I- N, as long

         25  you pronounce it correctly.
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          2                 Another reason and the main reason I

          3  am here tonight, and by the way, I will accept any

          4  questions you want, the major reason I am here

          5  tonight is to show solidarity with Councilman

          6  McMahon and the other prestigious members of the

          7  City Council that are supporting this measure.  I

          8  feel very, very strongly that not only must the City

          9  be prevented from increasing the amount of time for

         10  the ferry at night to one- hour, while maintaining

         11  it every half- hour during the day, I think it

         12  should be decreased and not increased so that people

         13  can get to work the way they have to.  I also

         14  believe very strongly against privatization of this

         15  ferry.

         16                 We had a battle a couple of years ago

         17  in, what was then the 23rd Senatorial District, at

         18  Coney Island Hospital to prevent the privatization

         19  of that hospital.  They said it could not be done,

         20  it was done.  I am opposed to the privatization of

         21  public schools.  I am in favor of the improvement of

         22  public schools, of hospitals, and of transportation

         23  needs of all people.

         24                 In this Borough of Staten Island,

         25  which needs transportation desperately, needs
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          2  controlled growth, needs buses, needs changes and

          3  improvement in terms of the Staten Island

          4  Expressway, one of the most important things we can

          5  do, tonight, is to express our opposition to the

          6  nefarious changes that are being talked about, and I

          7  hope and pray will never come to fruition.

          8                 Thank you all very much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Senator.

         10    I would like to, we do have a fair number of

         11  people who wish to testify today, and so I would ask

         12  if at all, if anybody, if no one minds, then perhaps

         13  we will call three witnesses up to the witness stand

         14  at the same time.  And we will also ask all of the

         15  witnesses to stay at the tables together so that

         16  they can address any questions that the Committee

         17  members may have.

         18                 I first would like to call up Vanessa

         19  Young, Anthony Santapaola, and Dave Roberts, I ask

         20  them to please come up to the witness table.  And

         21  just so the next panel can prepare, immediately

         22  after these three individuals speak, I would like to

         23  ask James Boivin, Theo Dorian, and Jane Vredenburgh

         24  to join us at the witness table after this panel is

         25  finished.
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          2                 MS. YOUNG:  Hello, my name is Vanessa

          3  Young.  I am a resident right around here in the St.

          4  George area.  I am a pastry chef in New York City,

          5  and I work a lot of hours, work 12, 13 hours a day.

          6  And I either work very early in the morning, which

          7  is the hour train schedule, or very late at night,

          8  which again, I hit the one- hour schedule.  And it

          9  seems really difficult for me to get out of work

         10  exactly that I am going to hit the ferry.  So I end

         11  up, you know, getting the doors shut in my face like

         12  two seconds before I am supposed to catch, and so I

         13  am stuck waiting in the ferry station.

         14                 And I am not, you know, I am a girl

         15  and I am kind of small, so it is a little scary

         16  waiting in that ferry station around, you know, 1:30

         17  for an hour at night, especially if you are very

         18  tired, you have been working all day, and you know,

         19  it is a scary thing.

         20                 So I am really in favor for having

         21  the schedule changed every half- hour.

         22                 MR. ROBERTS:  Hi, good evening.  My

         23  name is Dave Roberts.  I am a St. George resident

         24  from six years now.  I am a Staten Island native, as

         25  well as our representatives.  I grew up in Oakwood
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          2  Heights, which is about 10 miles from here.  As a

          3  young person going to the City, I used to have to

          4  commutes one and a half- hour to two hours just to

          5  get to Midtown Manhattan in the morning as my job.

          6  And I used to come home very late at night, and I as

          7  well would get the door shut in my face  As well,

          8  the trains never in the same sync with the ferry, if

          9  the ferry is on time, the trains never seem to

         10  arrive at the ferry on time, so we always seem to

         11  miss out.

         12                 I am very against the privatization

         13  of the ferries. I would never, I am a big guy as

         14  opposed to a small person, and I would be scared to

         15  ride a little boat in the middle of the harbor with

         16  10 or 12 people on it.  I would feel very unsafe

         17  about that. I would feel in a position to have to

         18  help other people, if there ever a problem came up.

         19                 I am in support of the ferry workers.

         20    I am a Local 40 Union, I work in Manhattan.  I

         21  support all the brothers in the Union down there,

         22  and I think it is a shame that they are not able to

         23  speak up for themselves in a way, they are in a

         24  Catch- 22 with not being able to strike, which would

         25  hurt Staten Islanders, but it is also going to hurt
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          2  them if everything goes private.

          3                 I just think that we can come to an

          4  amicable solution here with everybody's support.

          5                 MR. SANTAPAOLA:  My name is Anthony

          6  Santapaola.  I am a deck hand on the ferry.  And I

          7  am not very keen on the privatization issue, I would

          8  love to see the schedule increased to every half-

          9  hour service.  I am a native Staten Islander, and I

         10  remember years ago, going back and forth to the

         11  Lower East Side to visit my grandparents, and there

         12  were five boats running, every 10 minutes.  Okay.

         13                 And I have been an employee almost 20

         14  years there. The service on the weekends used to be

         15  better than it is now.  It was decreased.

         16                 The privatization issue, I cannot say

         17  anything good about it.  People can be hired for the

         18  private companies without any experience.  To work

         19  at the ferry, you had to have at least two years sea

         20  time to even qualify for the position.  We are

         21  mandated by the Coast Guard regulations.  We are

         22  drug tested by the Coast Guard regulations.  We are

         23  CPR trained, we are defibrillated trained.  We do

         24  fire and life boat drills once a week.  The safety

         25  record on the ferry is better than any service out
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          2  there.

          3                 And just as it happened in Queens

          4  with the buses that went on strike, the ferry

          5  workers cannot.  You, passengers, are protected by

          6  the Taylor Law, and we do not have anything against

          7  the Taylor Law.  We do not want to strike, we are

          8  not looking to strike, nobody even has that in their

          9  minds.  But it is for you to know that the Taylor

         10  Law with a private ferry, they could strike at any

         11  time, and you would be left standing in the

         12  terminals.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Let me just ask you

         15  guys a couple of questions, I guess directed to the

         16  first two.  Do you have any other way to get to

         17  work?

         18                 MR. ROBERTS:  I could drive to work,

         19  but the upkeep, you know, $7.00 for the toll, don't

         20  believe that it is discounted, only when you are

         21  able to get the discount.  I could go through the

         22  Battery Tunnel, that costs more money, I have to

         23  have the money to park.  Sometimes the job sites we

         24  are on do not allow us for parking in Manhattan, it

         25  is already congested.
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          2                 And number one, the one thing I

          3  forgot to mention is, I live in St. George which is

          4  about four miles from the City, I have to be on the

          5  job at 7:00, I have to leave my house to catch the

          6  5:00 ferry in order to get to work an hour earlier,

          7  and I have to sit there and do nothing, but read the

          8  paper, because, you know, I cannot rely on the

          9  schedule, it is a bogus schedule.  I could drive,

         10  but that is fuel and it would cost me, I have worked

         11  it out, it is well over $30 a day, even more.

         12                 Other than that, I have no other way

         13  to get there.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So the choice is

         15  between taking the ferry and paying the buck fifty

         16  or whatever the discounted rate is for mass transit,

         17  or $30 Bucks a day.

         18                 And how about the time involved?

         19                 MR. ROBERTS:  Three and a half-

         20  hours, sometimes three hours.  Ask anybody who lives

         21  in Manhattan, if they had to commutes three hours

         22  both ways, or even less, they would laugh at you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  So thank you

         24  very much. And in fact, that is a question that I

         25  think would be helpful for my colleagues and I to
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          2  understand, if people feel that they have any other

          3  option to get to work.  Thank you.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  I just have

          5  one quick question, the numbers that DOT throws out,

          6  sometimes 25 people on a boat at one o'clock, do you

          7  see that?  I cannot see that.  I know when I took it

          8  home, you know, there would be hundreds of people,

          9  and we would be sitting there for an hour, and it

         10  would turn into, you know, it could be pleasant, it

         11  could be unpleasant.  But I do not know where they

         12  get those numbers from.

         13                 Is that your experience, Vanessa,

         14  there is usually more than 25 people waiting, right?

         15                 MS. YOUNG:  Well, I took the boat

         16  last night or the night before, and there was, I

         17  would say, 150 waiting.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  One hundred

         19  and fifty waiting.  Sure, there are people there,

         20  right?

         21                 MS. YOUNG:  Right.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Right.  And

         23  clearly, if it was running more reliably, than more

         24  people would probably use it. Okay, thank you very

         25  much.
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          2                 MR. ROBERTS:  People do not go to the

          3  City because of that.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Right.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  I would

          6  like to ask the next panel to join us at the witness

          7  table, James Boivin, Theo Dorian, and Jane

          8  Vredenburgh.  And while they are testifying, if the

          9  next panel could prepare to come up, and we have

         10  Bill McHugh, Michael O'Toole, and Lawrence Conroy.

         11  Mr. Boivin.

         12                 MR. BOIVIN:  Thank you very much,

         13  Councilman.  We, here in St. George and Staten

         14  Island appreciate very much the Council taking the

         15  effort to come out here.

         16                 As you have already heard, this is an

         17  important issue to all Staten Islanders, this

         18  affects people in a whole variety of different ways

         19  in their daily course of work, of play, of

         20  education.  I have heard, as others have heard the

         21  documentation that the Department of Transportation

         22  has given over the years as to why they are

         23  rationalizing the lack of service.  This idea, and I

         24  would dare anyone in this room who takes the ferry

         25  late at night to even relate one experience in all
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          2  my years, that there were ever in a gale, there are

          3  more than 25 people using that ferry.

          4                 I also question the that the

          5  Department of Transportation is calculating the

          6  cost.  New York City has a $40 billion budget, that

          7  is a lot of money.  To increase ferry service, 24/7,

          8  half- hour, that we are sitting here discussing $3

          9  million, there is something wrong with this picture.

         10    Not totally familiar with the workings of the City

         11  Council, it seems to me that part of the problem of

         12  coming to a resolution, whether it be this law or

         13  some other law, or a change in Administrative

         14  Guidelines, someone needs to give us real figures,

         15  real information.

         16                 When was the last time anyone in this

         17  room heard that the ferries, the commuters' base in

         18  65,000 a day.  For the last 10 years, I heard it is

         19  anywhere from 75 to 100.  Now how is it, in this day

         20  and age, we are not able to get clear figures?  How

         21  can we expect our City Council to make clear

         22  decisions?

         23                 We need the Department of

         24  Transportation to give clear, real figures to our

         25  questions.  So far, whether it be this hearing, or
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          2  request that the ferry riders committee is made, the

          3  St. George Civic, and many other organizations

          4  across Staten Island, we have yet, ever, get clear

          5  information from the Department of Transportation as

          6  to what really is this all about.

          7                 And if anything, I think that we need

          8  to see someone in the Department of Transportation,

          9  all due respect to the lady who came out, that is

         10  willing to sit here and discuss in real terms what

         11  our options are, and how do we work together to come

         12  up with a solution?  We do not want to wait anymore.

         13                 One last thing, I also grew up here

         14  on Staten Island, before the bridge, there was far

         15  greater ferry service with half to a third of the

         16  population.  With a Citywide budget in those years,

         17  not in the billions, in the hundreds of millions

         18  dollars, somehow they were able to afford to pay for

         19  adequate ferry service for Staten Island.  What has

         20  happened in the last 40 years?

         21                 There is no rationale that DOT or any

         22  other City agency can give us Staten Islanders why

         23  we have to wait an hour to get home.  It is

         24  unacceptable, there is no other transportation to

         25  any of the other Boroughs that even off- hours takes
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          2  more than 20 minutes.  And during rush hour, during

          3  the course of the day, subway service, bus service,

          4  is all every 10 minutes.  What is happening out here

          5  is important to the economic viability, and for

          6  people to be able to have a better quality of life,

          7  through, very basically, having more time to spend

          8  with themselves, with their friends, with their

          9  families, dropping down to one of the businesses,

         10  maybe spending some money, paying some taxes by

         11  doing that, increasing economic activity.

         12                 I believe, very clear evidence will

         13  show, if the Department of Transportation is willing

         14  to do it, that with the increase of ferry service we

         15  will have more economic development here,

         16  consequently, more people paying taxes, and this

         17  measly 2, 2,4, 5 million dollars they are talking

         18  about, would be absorbed in the increase in the tax

         19  base that they would develop in this area.         We

         20  do not want to wait any longer, and we would

         21  appreciate your help in resolving this.

         22                 MS. VREDENBURGH:  Good evening.  My

         23  name is Jane Vredenburgh.  I am Transportation Chair

         24  of Community Board #1. Everybody who has helped to

         25  make this meeting possible, thank you.            You
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          2  will hear over and over again this evening of why it

          3  is important to provide half- hour ferry service to

          4  Staten Islanders returning tonight.  As a

          5  Northeaster, presently, deters many other people

          6  from attending this hearing.  You will hear it from

          7  store clerks, restaurant workers, who work a late

          8  shift or overtime.  From families who go to the City

          9  for dinner, theater, sports events or other

         10  entertainment, all who have been forced to wait an

         11  hour of more for a boat after 11:00 p.m., in a cold,

         12  dreary, homeless populated environment that is often

         13  unsafe because of the lack of ferry police at the

         14  Manhattan terminal.  That is another issue to be

         15  addressed at another time.

         16                 Consider a few facts, many of the

         17  workers are holding minimum or low- wage jobs, and

         18  they do not have the luxury of owning a car.  They

         19  are dependent on public transportation. They work in

         20  the restaurants, the theaters, where other Staten

         21  Islanders and our tourist from around the world

         22  spend their dollars to help bring back the economy

         23  of the City that gave so much after 9/11.

         24                 After 9/11, it was people from Staten

         25  Island who could not return to work for weeks,
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          2  because there was no ferry service.  Many Staten

          3  Islanders lost their jobs or their businesses at

          4  that time.  But no one once had taken into account

          5  that their families have yet to make up the weeks

          6  without pay checks.  Now the City is facing its

          7  battle of billions of dollars in budget deficits.

          8  The only way to face a deficit is to provide

          9  incentives for people to spend their hard- earned

         10  dollars.

         11                 Increasing ferry service will help

         12  the economy by making it easier for Staten Islanders

         13  and tourists to travel to and from Manhattan in the

         14  late evening.  And at the same time, help our

         15  working families and lower- income families, and

         16  those who work a late shift, return to their homes.

         17  Up to an hour earlier after a hard day's work.

         18                 In addition, it would provide the

         19  incentive for people to leave their cars at home and

         20  use public transportation. Thereby, reducing

         21  pollution throughout the City.

         22                 In the spring of 2002, Community

         23  Board #1 made the following motion:

         24                 Whereas Staten Islanders are in need

         25  of ferry service and are forced to wait an hour for
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          2  a boat, Community Board #1 strongly requests that

          3  boats run every half- hour after 11:00 p.m. Until

          4  morning rush hour.  As the Board's Transportation

          5  Chairwoman, I strongly advocate this position, and

          6  hope that the Department of Transportation will

          7  consider the economic benefits to running half- hour

          8  ferry service, and after 11:00 p.m., seven days a

          9  week.

         10                 The saying has always been, you need

         11  to spend money to make money.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 MR. DORIAN:  Chairman Liu, Council

         14  Members Lanza, McMahon, fellow ferry riders, and

         15  most of all, I would not forget here, as a matter of

         16  fact, I would like to single you out, Council Member

         17  Reyna, as the only Council Member who is not from

         18  Staten Island who had the dignity to grace us with

         19  your presence tonight, thank you very much.  It says

         20  a lot about you and your interest for the City as a

         21  whole.

         22                 I thanked Chairman Liu, first, I am

         23  on record.  I thank everybody who is here, because

         24  it is a bad night and we have a wonderful turnout,

         25  and I guarantee you we would have many, many, more
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          2  people here tonight if it were better weather.

          3                 My name is Theo Dorian, I am the

          4  Chair of the Ferry Riders Committee of the St.

          5  George Civic Association.  Our Committee was formed

          6  over eight years ago, to address concerns regarding

          7  the ferry schedule, the boats, and the service, and

          8  the terminals.  Immediately upon forming we heard

          9  the news that the reconstruction of the St. George

         10  Ferry Terminal was to go ahead without providing for

         11  air conditioning, which boggled our minds. No such

         12  large transportation terminal anywhere could

         13  conceivably be planned without air conditioning.  So

         14  our first campaign was to petition the City, which

         15  was successful to include air conditioning in the

         16  terminal.  And anybody who has to wait in that

         17  terminal in the mornings, and you know we still do

         18  not have it, knows what your clothes are like by the

         19  time you get off the boat, much less get to the

         20  office.  And we could not believe that the modest

         21  rehabilitation that was proposed did not include

         22  that.  We went on to campaign for and make

         23  programmatic suggestions for a better new St. George

         24  Terminal and for a better Whitehall Terminal, both

         25  of which are being built as we speak partly due to
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          2  our efforts as well as those of City Council and our

          3  Borough President.

          4                 We have found that since our

          5  inception, we need to play defense, and more and

          6  more holes spring up in the dike, if you will, of

          7  ferry service that we need to plug.  And no sooner

          8  have we plugged one, than another breaks.  Most

          9  astounding to us is that here at a time where after

         10  eight years we have been begging the City for an

         11  expanded ferry schedule, and let's make this clear,

         12  what we are begging for here, is to go back to what

         13  we had a century ago  In fact, it is more modest

         14  than what we had a century ago.

         15                 What we are asking for is a schedule

         16  that is still far less than what the other four

         17  boroughs are provided, from only one point in our

         18  Borough, and that is what we are asking for, and

         19  this is what DOT feels is to expensive to provide

         20  for us.  The amount of money that Ms. Horsch quoted,

         21  $3 million, is indeed, a .8 million dollars than we

         22  had been previously quoted, but you know, $3 million

         23  in a City budget.  A budget proposed by a Mayor to

         24  include $5 million to fight smoking, which he has

         25  taken directly out of the public health budget, so
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          2  nurses have been cut.

          3                 When a few million dollars is needed

          4  for something the Administration considers

          5  important, it can be procured.  We live in a Borough

          6  which gave this Mayor his margin of victory, as it

          7  did to the previous Mayor, Giuliani.  Without the

          8  vote of Staten Island neither of those Mayors would

          9  have been elected.  And I feel that to propose

         10  privatizing the Municipal service at a time when we

         11  are preparing to celebrate the centennial of the

         12  inception of municipal service, is a slap in the

         13  face of the constituency which has elected this

         14  Mayor.

         15                 These sorts of problems that we are

         16  now hearing people anticipate when the ferry is

         17  privatized.  They were unsafe, they were unclean,

         18  there was no police presence mandated on them, which

         19  there is now, and as brought up by Mr. Santapaola,

         20  there will, under privatization not necessarily be

         21  any Coast Guard mandated inspections, any police

         22  presence, nor will be protected from a strike, even

         23  during the days of 9/11, our ferry workers proved

         24  themselves to be heroes, and they are uncredit (sic)

         25  to heroes - -  thank you, no, thank you, Sir.  There
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          2  were a lot of heroes on that day.  But ones who did

          3  not get a lot of attention were the ferry workers

          4  who were pressed to the service ferrying thousands,

          5  in cases of some, most over 10,000 at a time, people

          6  seeking to escape Manhattan at that point.  The

          7  ferry service did not flag, nor has it through any

          8  Northeasters, and I very much doubt that would be

          9  the case under privatization.

         10                 Most of all, during our eight years,

         11  we have, in our talks amongst ourselves, as well as

         12  our talks with ferry riders, the one thing that

         13  comes up more than anything is the woefully,

         14  inadequate schedule that we have.  It is simply not

         15  enough to run our lives.  And you have heard

         16  anecdotally, and you are probably going to hear

         17  more, and there are things that we have not and will

         18  not hear.  On a Sunday morning, people go to church

         19  between the boroughs, and they're not able to do

         20  that because of the one- hour schedule, and if they

         21  miss one it simply throws their entire day. Anyone

         22  who has missed that seven o'clock boat on a Saturday

         23  night, when you are going to an eight o'clock show,

         24  this is one of the main reasons to live in New York

         25  City, the Arts, the Culture, and the night life, are
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          2  one of the reasons we live in New York City. And

          3  after all, speaking strictly technically, Staten

          4  Island is a part of New York City, and it should be

          5  treated as a part of New York City, it should not be

          6  easier to go back and forth to Staten Island from

          7  New Jersey.  People should not be moving to another

          8  state because it is easier to commute from there,

          9  from that state than it is from part of New York

         10  City.

         11                 So we find ourselves now defending,

         12  first of all, the very concept of municipal ferry

         13  service.  It never occurred to a Borough where

         14  nearly 80 percent of our population voted for this

         15  current Mayor, that he would try to take away the

         16  only publicly funded transportation service from

         17  Staten Island to Manhattan that exists, and put us

         18  in the kind of jeopardy that people are describing.

         19                 And this legislation is the first

         20  time that this question has been addressed by the

         21  City.  And our Council Delegation, Council Members

         22  Lanza, Oddo, and McMahon, have for the very first

         23  time addressed this question.  And we hope that we

         24  will have a forum where we can ask the DOT a few

         25  questions, because the statistics Ms. Horsch, what

                                                            41

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  you quote are absurd on their face and completely

          3  undocumented.  I know this, first of all, anybody

          4  who rides the ferry and does any sort of casual

          5  count, and we have been doing them for the weeks

          6  since we have heard this nonsensical statistic from

          7  the DOT, knows that there are far more people, even

          8  on a lone night in February than you counted.

          9                 Secondly, I have personally called

         10  the Department of Transportation, as have other

         11  members of our Committee, and requested of

         12  Commissioner Weinshall's Office, and of Tom Cocola,

         13  to document the protocol under which these

         14  statistics, upon which our service, our lifeline is

         15  being based, we would like to know how these

         16  statistics were arrived at, and nobody has been able

         17  to tell us.  We question whether there even was a

         18  protocol for arriving at these statistics.  We

         19  proposed to you that we can give you far more

         20  accurate figures with our own informal counts, and

         21  challenge you to show us.

         22                 Secondly, even if those were the

         23  right statistics, and again they are not, imagine

         24  the number of people who would be using the ferry

         25  service, if we did have the wider schedule.  There
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          2  are a number of people, and we have already heard

          3  from one or two, who do not even have the Staten

          4  Island Ferry in their vocabulary when it comes to

          5  going out at night, it is simply not possible for a

          6  young woman, or for that matter an older man or

          7  anybody to be at the mercy at the kind of situation

          8  that arises when you are stranded alone in the ferry

          9  terminal in the middle of the night, and on the

         10  weekend mornings, and of all things, on holidays.

         11  The day when you really need to visit the City, to

         12  go into the City to visit your families, on holidays

         13  we actually have a once an hour schedule for the

         14  entire day and the entire evening, and that is just

         15  not acceptable.

         16                 We cannot be a part of the fabric of

         17  City life, and do not feel that we are.  Staten

         18  Island is such a wonderful place to live that many

         19  of us have chosen to live even despite those

         20  hardships.  I came to live here because I used to

         21  ride that boat for pleasure when I lived in

         22  Manhattan.  I got off, I looked around, I could not

         23  believe the beauty of the neighborhood I was seeing

         24  here in St. George, and elsewhere on the Island.

         25  And I chose to live here.  I question whether I
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          2  would have done that, if I had a chance to spend a

          3  week here and try to run my life, because it simply

          4  is not possible.

          5                 And finally, we are not only talking

          6  about the people who live here, we are talking about

          7  the people who would visit given a chance.  We feel

          8  isolated here, anyone who has had a party, when

          9  midnight rolls around, and your guest say, well, I

         10  think I will be leaving now, you know what it is

         11  like to tell them, no, sorry, you will hanging

         12  around for another hour until 1:00 a.m. Because you

         13  do not have a chance to leave.  And you know the

         14  look on their faces when you say that.  And you know

         15  what happens the next time that you invite them,

         16  they do not come, do they?  They just do not come,

         17  they say, Staten Island is a big hassle to get to

         18  and back.  And what does that do for our economic

         19  growth?

         20                 We, in St. George, have been working

         21  very hard with a great deal of cooperation from the

         22  City Council and from our Borough President to build

         23  this area up and to improve its economy. But when

         24  our Borough President suggests that Wall Street look

         25  to Staten Island as a possible alternative location,
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          2  which it is now seeking, we are simply laughed at.

          3  Because anyone who tries to come out here can see

          4  that it is simply not manageable.  You cannot go

          5  back and forth and be a part of the lifeline of this

          6  City from here.  So we are at an economic

          7  disadvantages.

          8                 A couple of million dollars, if $5

          9  million dollars is worth it to fight smoking, if

         10  $100 million of the City's budget is worth it to

         11  build us a Stadium, which indeed, it was and we are

         12  grateful for.  A couple of million dollars to give

         13  us the kind of service that would make us a real

         14  part of the City would simply just improve to the

         15  economy of this City.  We are, the Staten Island

         16  Ferry, in addition to being all that you have heard

         17  about, as the lifeline of the City's transit, of the

         18  Borough's transit, is also the number one tourist

         19  attraction in the State of New York, above Niagara

         20  Falls.  We are providing our boats, and we are

         21  grateful to do it, happy to do it, we love the

         22  people that we meet on the ferry from around the

         23  world, but it happens to be on the backs of Staten

         24  Island commuters that the City is providing a great

         25  enhancement to its economy, namely, a free
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          2  attraction to visitors to this City.  It is fine for

          3  them, but for the people who want to visit the City

          4  and who want to be a part of our lives, it is simply

          5  not enough.

          6                 So what we are asking is, if the City

          7  has $4 million a year to pay to the New York

          8  Waterways Ferries, the private contractor, who is

          9  likely to get this contract if the ferry is

         10  privatized, or so- called management fees, and DOT

         11  has not been able to tell me what that means,

         12  $300,000 a month is paid to the private contractor,

         13  New York Waterways, for so- called management fees,

         14  something that the DOT has not been able to tell us

         15  what that is, nor has any elected official.  If they

         16  have got that kind of money to give to the private

         17  contractors, why don't they have it to give to the

         18  Public Municipal Ferry service?

         19                 Thank you.  So we implore you to

         20  consider taking this step, to, at least, give us a

         21  chance to participate in the life of the City, and

         22  to give our friends and visitors a chance to be a

         23  part of our lives.  Fix the problems at the ferry,

         24  yes, but privatization is not the way to do that,

         25  and leaving the schedule as it is, at an historic
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          2  low of service, is simply wrong.  All we are asking

          3  is to provide for the nearly half a million of

          4  Staten Islanders who live here today, the same kind

          5  of service that the fraction of that population had

          6  back before we became the fastest, largest, growing

          7  population of any County in New York State.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you for your

         10  very informative testimony and passionate concern

         11  about this important issue.  I have a lot to say

         12  about what the three of you mentioned, and also what

         13  the previous panel had mentioned.

         14                 Let me just mention that a staff

         15  member from Council Member James Oddo has been with

         16  us since the beginning of this hearing, and I

         17  apologize for not mentioning that earlier.

         18                 I think that you make excellent

         19  points here, and I know that my colleagues on this

         20  Committee, and I share with you that transportation

         21  is certainly not a luxury, it is a necessity, and it

         22  is, mass transit is, again, what New Yorkers, all

         23  New Yorkers rely on to get to and from their jobs.

         24  So, I think that we have a complicated budget

         25  process in this City, and perhaps necessarily so
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          2  just because of the size of the budget, $41 billion

          3  a year.  And so, two, three million dollars,

          4  whatever the number actually is, seems to be a tiny

          5  drop in this huge bucket.  And I think at the end of

          6  the day, it really boils down to a question of

          7  priorities.  Priorities for the City to make, and

          8  the fact of the matter that there are many other

          9  areas in the entire municipal budget of New York,

         10  where there are things that cost more than a couple

         11  of million of dollars, which probably could have a

         12  lower priority placed on it.  Just because, we are

         13  not talking about a luxury item here, we are not

         14  talking about an optional item, we are talking about

         15  a service, again, that gets New Yorkers to and from

         16  their jobs.  So I think you make very excellent

         17  points.

         18                 Now I just wanted to make everybody

         19  aware of a hearing that we had last week in this

         20  Committee, which was on the possible fare increase

         21  on the bus and subways.  That, obviously, would

         22  affect Staten Islanders as well as all other New

         23  Yorkers. And during that hearing we had mentioned to

         24  MTA, which is obviously the agency that regulates

         25  the buses and subways, that you cannot always think
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          2  something is going to cost money.  It may actually

          3  turn out the opposite way.

          4                 And I brought up the example of a

          5  number of years ago when in various parts of New

          6  York City there were strong proposals to eliminate

          7  the two- fare zones, which involved people who lived

          8  in parts of the City where they had to take a bus to

          9  get the subway, and they had to pay two fares.  And

         10  the agency complained that if you eliminated the

         11  two- fare zones, it would cost $200 million or

         12  something on that order of magnitude.  And when they

         13  eliminated the two- fare zones, that in fact, the

         14  MTA experienced some significant surpluses, because

         15  you had that many more people take the buses and

         16  subways.

         17                 And then about a year and a half

         18  after that, people talked about the need to give New

         19  Yorkers a discounted for purchasing MetroCards.  And

         20  again, the response, the gut initial reaction was,

         21  oh my goodness, we are going to lose $400 million a

         22  year, if we introduce those discounts.  And lo and

         23  behold, they introduced the discounts anyway,

         24  because there were so many New Yorkers who clamored

         25  for them.  And the result, unprecedented surpluses
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          2  in the MTA budget.

          3                 And so I really think that you have a

          4  very strong point when you mention that, if we are

          5  to invest two or three million dollars in the

          6  service for Staten Islanders, who are New Yorkers,

          7  just as much as anybody else, that more people would

          8  be taking the ferries, that the cost that the

          9  ridership would certainly more than justify the

         10  cost.  And who knows, maybe we will generate some

         11  surpluses that way and make some money for the City,

         12  not necessarily, obviously, not in the fares, but in

         13  the economic development that will be spurred by

         14  getting people to their jobs, by having a reliable,

         15  mass transit option.

         16                 So, I certainly want to thank you for

         17  the points that you have mentioned.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Can I just

         19  say one thing?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  While you

         22  are switching panels, did you mention that Joe

         23  Addabbo's aid is here too?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Also, Councilman

         25  Joe Addabbo, who is on the Committee, his aid is
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          2  here too.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MCMAHON:  But while we

          4  are switching panels, a lot has been said about

          5  credit for me for getting this hearing together.

          6  But I want to say in comparison to the work that the

          7  Ferry Riders Committee of the St. George Civic

          8  Association has done, I am certainly, a Michael come

          9  lately, in that they have been working for this, as

         10  Theo has said, for many years.  And it is really

         11  through their advocacy that kind of prodded me into,

         12  you know, thinking up this legislation, and they are

         13  the ones who are standing out with me in the rain

         14  before the meeting, and they are the ones who are

         15  going to be with me, with us all the way until we

         16  get this done.

         17                 So, we of Staten Island owe a great

         18  deal thanks to that Committee, to Theo, to Tamara,

         19  and to everybody from that St. George Committee and

         20  everyone, but them especially.

         21                 So, if we could now, switch the

         22  panel.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         24  much.  I would like to, once again, ask Bill McHugh,

         25  Michael O'Toole, and Lawrence Conroy to come up to
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          2  the witness table.  And to ask the next panel to get

          3  ready to come up, that would be Susan McAnanama,

          4  Rich Russo, and Tamara Coomhs.

          5                 Good evening.

          6                 MR. MCHUGH:  Good evening, ladies and

          7  gentlemen, City Council members, and other

          8  distinguished guests.  My name is Bill McHugh.  I am

          9  with the District 1 MEBA.  The MEBA represents the

         10  Captains, Pilots, Mates, Chief, and other engineers,

         11  Marine Engineers on the Staten Island Ferry system.

         12                 Presently, the Staten Island Ferry

         13  system is among the most dependable, safest, and

         14  basically one of the best systems, probably in the

         15  world.  They are burdened with the safety of

         16  thousands, hundreds of thousands of commuters.

         17  Currently, these vessels are oversized in class in

         18  with the current system employed that they are

         19  regulated by the US Coast Guard, and inspected by

         20  the US Coast Guard.

         21                 The current crews, they are highly

         22  trained, union crews.  They have at their disposal

         23  the finest training facilities to keep them up to

         24  date with the latest in safety and security. Fire

         25  fighting is a major issue on board a vessel as you
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          2  can imagine.  These individuals are highly trained,

          3  and like I said, at the disposal they have the

          4  benefit of training.

          5                 The people of Staten Island and New

          6  York deserve a municipally run ferry system at no

          7  cost; there is no question. Through privatization,

          8  there are a couple of things here we are running the

          9  risk of.  A private company is looking at one thing,

         10  the bottom line; you are going to lose the highly

         11  trained crews, that is just a fact.  They do not

         12  care who they employ, as long as it is a warm body

         13  and a heart beat.  You are also going to lose the

         14  type of vessel that you have enjoyed.  Inclement

         15  weather, such as tonight, you have security with the

         16  vessels you have.  There is going to be an economic

         17  impact on the front end, and there is going to be a

         18  very real economic impact further on down the road

         19  for Staten Island, and I think the City will see it

         20  as well.

         21                 Basically, do not allow economics to

         22  stand in the way of safety, and basically the future

         23  for Staten Island.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 MR. O'TOOLE:  Council members,
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          2  guests, Mr. McHugh and I are in the same union.  I

          3  am a 23- year employee of the Staten Island Ferry,

          4  and I am just going to put out a couple of

          5  questions. I know I am preaching to the choir here,

          6  except for the one exception, but I am going to

          7  touch on some issues that have already been touched

          8  on.  One of them have just popped into my head is,

          9  is the City going to run smaller vans for these

         10  buses that only have two passengers on them at night

         11  time?  Just out of curiosity, right, it is the same

         12  thing.

         13                 How the Mayor on one hand, he can

         14  recommend that the privately operated buses operated

         15  in Queens be brought under the Municipal control to

         16  preclude the possibility of a strike, yet, he

         17  recommends the exact opposite for the Staten Island

         18  Ferry, explain that one to me, I do not get it.

         19                 What happens with these boats in the

         20  rough and inclement weather?  Again, all these

         21  things, they mean something.            Are they

         22  going to be Coast Guard inspected?  I will tell you

         23  right now that they are not.  I guarantee you that

         24  they are not?

         25                 Are the crews going to be trained as
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          2  we are?  No way, we train, and then we train, and

          3  then we train some more after that.

          4                 Are they going to be handicapped

          5  accessible?

          6                 Where are they going to dock?

          7                 There are a lot of questions here,

          8  and I do not see any answers.

          9                 Do you think really in the long run

         10  that the City is going to save money on this?

         11  Really? Does anybody here think they are going to

         12  save money?  Let's be real, you know they are not

         13  going to save money.

         14                 How are they going to handle these

         15  large crowds after special events?  Halloween is

         16  coming up, we are going to have the Halloween

         17  Parade.  Do you know what that terminal is going to

         18  look like in Manhattan?  Try to put one of those

         19  small boats picking up those people, especially in

         20  costumes, that is going to be something.

         21                 Are the crews going to be union?  Are

         22  they going to be paid prevailing wage?  This is an

         23  important question; this is a Union City we live in.

         24    I am not going to say anymore on that issue.

         25                 But think about it.  What happens
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          2  when a boat breaks down?  Is there enough backup, do

          3  they have a readily available repair crew and

          4  facility like we have?  We pick up the phone down

          5  there, I am 23 years on that, we have a problem, I

          6  pick up the phone two o'clock in the morning, I got

          7  an electrician.  Where are they going to get that?

          8  They are not, they are not going to get it.

          9                 As far as the crews are concerned, do

         10  they have a large enough manpower pool to cover any

         11  sicknesses and illnesses? No.

         12                 And the last question I want to ask

         13  is, does the riding public really want this?

         14                 ALL:  No.

         15                 MR. MCHUGH:  I did not think so.

         16  Okay, a final statement I just want to make, in all

         17  my years working the Staten Island Ferry, it has

         18  been shown to be shortsighted management. They are

         19  doing so again, if they believe that running the

         20  smaller boat with the result of savings of fuel and

         21  crew costs is the best way to operate this night

         22  service, then do it.  Buy the boats, let us crew

         23  them.  We are Coast Guard licensed trained,

         24  experienced, professional, existing union municipal

         25  workers, we will do the job, we know how to do it.
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          2                 And that is all I have to say.

          3                 MR. CONROY:  Good evening.  My name

          4  is Larry Conroy. I am a Marine Oiler on the Staten

          5  Island Ferry.  I am also a tankerman, we fuel the

          6  boats.  I also work in the St. George Boiler Room

          7  down there.  And I have been down there 14 years.  I

          8  am also the Shop Steward for Local 333, I represent

          9  the deck hands, the Marine oilers, the Ferry

         10  Terminal Supervisors and the Ferry Agents.

         11                 Mike hit on a lot of the things that

         12  I was going to say, so I do not want to repeat that.

         13    But I would just like to say we have always been

         14  the forgotten Borough.  And here it is again,

         15  instead of getting a ferry boat, they want to give

         16  you a fishing boat, you know.

         17                 They say the count is down at night.

         18  You know why, because people would rather drive and

         19  pay the extra couple of Bucks, or a lot of money

         20  now, for the Verrazano Bridge, for parking up there,

         21  than to have to wait for that boat.

         22                 I will tell you another reason why

         23  those counts are down, it is because they get them

         24  from turnstiles, and a lot of people do not go

         25  through the turnstiles, they go around them, because
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          2  they are a pain in the ass.  So they go down, they

          3  load on the lower level, which they are not supposed

          4  to do, but they do, because we let them.  Because it

          5  is an inconvenience for somebody that has a bum leg

          6  or who is an old person to have to climb the stairs,

          7  because there is no handicap, there are no

          8  elevators, no escalators anymore.  Yet, the

          9  terminals are being built and we understand that,

         10  that is why we do let them in on the lower level,

         11  against what we are supposed to do.  But you know,

         12  they are not the terrorist here, they are just old,

         13  infirmed and stuff like that. So half of the people

         14  do not get counted.  And if they say that is not

         15  true, I work there and I am telling you the truth.

         16                 And as far as air conditioning in the

         17  terminals, it is going to be.  Okay, they are

         18  putting that in and I want you to know that.

         19                 And another thing is our on time

         20  performance is 95 to 98 percent.  Okay?  Like I

         21  said, I do not want to keep you here all night.

         22  Mike hit on a lot of things, and he is right.  We

         23  are qualified, we are trained.  You may see us on

         24  the ferry, but you do not see us going to the

         25  schools, on our vacations, paying for that out of
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          2  our own pockets, majority of it, every year.

          3                 We have our fire and lifeboat drill

          4  every week, whether it is raining, snowing, or the

          5  sun shining.  They launch the boat, they roll around

          6  in it.  If somebody jumps over the side, they save

          7  them.  Are these guys going to do that, these $8.00

          8  an hour guys?  I do not think so.  Are they going to

          9  jeopardize their life, if the guy in the water is

         10  insane and he does not want to be saved, are they

         11  going to fight the guy to get him back in the boat?

         12  We do.  You know what you get for it?  You get a

         13  little pin that is if you are lucky; you get a

         14  little pin.

         15                 That is what I have got to say about

         16  it.  Keep it union.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very much

         18  for your comments, I think they are very important

         19  points.  And you know, I think that it is important

         20  for us to get true numbers, true data from which to

         21  make an informed and intelligent decision here at

         22  City Hall.  And I think it is problematic that we

         23  have just a discrepancy between what the agency is

         24  saying and what the people who ride and work on the

         25  actual ferries are saying.  So that is something
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          2  that we are going to need to investigate much

          3  further. And I hope that the DOT, I think the DOT

          4  will cooperate, but certainly that is something that

          5  we really need to get to the bottom of, exactly what

          6  is the ridership late at night?

          7                 I certainly want to commend the job

          8  that you folks do for on the ferries, on the riders.

          9    And, you know, I will say right from the outset

         10  that a whole bunch of us from City Hall, we left at

         11  about 5:20 this afternoon to catch the 5:45, and we

         12  got there about 5:40, and I was just sitting, and in

         13  my seat, and as soon as I looked at my watch and

         14  5:45 ticked off, the ferry started moving.

         15                 So certainly, I want to thank you for

         16  a very dependable service that you have given to New

         17  Yorkers.  And let's give, let's let DOT share some

         18  of that credit, between the workers and the DOT, you

         19  guys have collectively made the ferry a very

         20  dependable service.  And now we just want to expand

         21  it.

         22                 Yes, you know, constructive criticism

         23  and positive feedback is always helpful.  And so we

         24  want to give credit, where credit is due.  But we

         25  also want to really bring out the need that we have
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          2  in this city, and this, so far from what I am

          3  hearing, there seems to be a terrific need for this.

          4                 Thanks a lot.

          5                 MR. CONROY:  We would like to invite

          6  you to take the 2:30 in the morning ferry - -

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  With this many

          8  witnesses, we may actually being doing that tonight.

          9                 Susan McAnanama, Rich Russo, and

         10  Tamara Coomhs.  And I would like to ask the next

         11  panel to prepare to come up, that would be Louis

         12  Blois, Kevin Heath, and A. D. Coleman.

         13                 MS. COOMHS:  My name is Tamara

         14  Coomhs.  I lived here in St. George for the last 12

         15  years.  I am a founding member of the Ferry Riders

         16  Committee.  Before I read my statement, I would like

         17  to say just something about the statistical issue.

         18                 I am one of those people who called

         19  Tom Cocola's Office and asked for a yearly

         20  ridership.  There was a long hesitation on the other

         21  end of the line, and then the person came back and

         22  said, it is 20 million a year.  And I said, and how

         23  did you arrive at that number?  And he said, what?

         24  I said, and how did you arrive at the number?  And

         25  he went away for a while, and he came back and he
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          2  said, we ill get back to you.

          3                 So they had someone from the Ferry

          4  Service here on Staten Island call, and I asked that

          5  same question, how do you arrive at that number?  He

          6  said, well, we do a count at the turnstiles, and

          7  then we do, add a little factor for people who take

          8  the express buses in, in the morning, and take the

          9  ferries back.

         10                 As all of us who ride the ferry know,

         11  there have not been any turnstiles on the Whitehall

         12  side since the Ferry Terminal burned.  So there is

         13  no way whatever to count the tourists, there is no

         14  way whatever to count people who arrive in Manhattan

         15  by another means and take the ferry home.  So I

         16  think that this question of numbers is a real

         17  question and one that takes further look.

         18                 I thought it might be helpful for us

         19  to look back, to look way back.  In 1900, Civil

         20  Justice John J. Kenney of Richmond County said he

         21  believed that the City of New York should maintain a

         22  ferry from Manhattan to Richmond and make it free

         23  for passengers.  The City now maintains a free

         24  method of crossing from Manhattan to Brooklyn in the

         25  shape of a bridge, and was going to maintain several
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          2  more free bridges.  Richmond alone had no means of

          3  free communication with the heart of the City.  It

          4  was no more unreasonable to maintain a free ferry,

          5  than a free bridge.

          6                 At that time, ferry service was

          7  private.  In February of 1902, a New York Times

          8  Headlines read, "Staten Island Protests."  What 200

          9  leading citizens were protesting with the Dock

         10  Commissioner was the private ferry service that in

         11  the words of Chamber of Commerce Secretary,

         12  Cornelius Koff, had Richmond by the throat.  The

         13  private ferry company declines to make improvements

         14  in boats, landings, or service, and private ferries

         15  have been held responsible for a disastrous

         16  collision in 1901.

         17                 In October of 1905, Mayor McCullen

         18  (phonetic) made good on a political promise, and

         19  Municipal service was begun for the Staten Island

         20  Ferry.  And unexpected crowd of over 7,000 people

         21  were at Whitehall waiting to take the first boat,

         22  and had to be held back by mounted police.  Captain

         23  Blunt pulled the whistle cord three times, the Bay

         24  was filled with answering whistles from liners,

         25  ferry boats and tugs, what is now Liberty Island,
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          2  three new boats comprising the rest of the fleet,

          3  fell in line behind the Manhattan, which led the way

          4  to St. George where most of the population had taken

          5  a holiday, enjoyed.

          6                 The ferries ran once an hour between

          7  1:30 and 4:30 a.m., half hourly form 4:30 to 6:30,

          8  every 15 minutes between 6:30 and 10:30, then half-

          9  hourly until the evening rush.  And that is when

         10  about eight and a half million took the ferry every

         11  year, not over 20 million.  The improved ferry

         12  service led to a boom in Staten Island's in terms of

         13  homes bought, businesses started, and also at Staten

         14  Island's Resorts.  One fine spring day in 1906

         15  brought 100,000 people to Staten Island's beaches by

         16  ferry.

         17                 It is true that we now have bridges

         18  and tunnels to transport Staten Islanders, and more

         19  standing room only buses, traffic jams, air

         20  pollution, wasted time and stressed out commuters.

         21  It would be worthwhile to remember Mayor McCullen's

         22  words on the first day of municipal service.  "The

         23  ferry is the longest step of binding the boroughs

         24  together since the completion of the Brooklyn

         25  Bridge.  It establishes a standard of excellence in
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          2  interborough communication that must forever be

          3  lived up to.  It will serve to break down the

          4  barriers of nature, and to bind them more closely

          5  together into one homogeneous whole, the five

          6  component parts of our city.  So that as years go

          7  by, the people of New York will remember only that

          8  they are citizens of one great city, that they love,

          9  one in thought, one in hope, one in righteousness."

         10                 We need nothing less that what Staten

         11  Islanders had in 1904 and 1905, dependable and safe

         12  Municipal ferry service that is responsive to the

         13  needs of citizens.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 MR. RUSSO:  Hello, I am Rich Russo,

         16  nice to be here. I am very privileged to be here

         17  with my fellow crew members.  I am a Terminal

         18  Supervisor, senior most Terminal Supervisor at the

         19  ferry.  I am the one who makes the schedules.  I

         20  have been making schedules for 20 years.  When I

         21  started we had only six boats, and back in the

         22  eighties, we had half- hour schedule on weekends,

         23  and now we see it decreasing even though there are

         24  more people on Staten Island, and we just do what we

         25  are told.  I can put a schedule together in two
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          2  seconds, I can switch boats, I have been doing it

          3  for many years, and I would be happy to have more

          4  boats to make a better schedule for everybody.

          5                 We are all professionals, I have been

          6  there over 26 years, and I take pride in my job.

          7  And the most biggest sin of all is to cancel a trip.

          8    We do anything we can not to inconvenience the

          9  people of Staten Island.  And I am a native Staten

         10  Islander, I have been here before the bridge, I have

         11  spent half my life on the ferries, I do not know any

         12  other life.  And I feel for everybody who has to

         13  take ferries at night, and we believe that even if

         14  there is one person, we continue service in any kind

         15  of weather.

         16                 And we are totally against

         17  privatization, and we can only do what we are told,

         18  but most of us, the majority of people who work on

         19  the ferries are Staten Islanders, and we do care,

         20  and we are with you 100 percent.

         21                 Thank you very much.

         22                 MS. COOMHS:  Staten Island residents

         23  and Council members, thank you very much for coming.

         24    I have the wonderful job of being the cheerleader

         25  for Staten Island, and I get to stay at the
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          2  information booth at the Ferry Terminal in

          3  Manhattan, and we have a staff of people and

          4  volunteers that promote Staten Island. And the way

          5  we promote people to come to Staten Island is via

          6  the Staten Island Ferry.

          7                 We have heard a lot of people talk

          8  about tourism, and frankly, there are more tourists

          9  than ever, but in the last year, we have had a

         10  falling off of tourists.  But the year 2000 we had

         11  more tourists than ever.  However, this year we

         12  really have had a downturn in tourism.  And so, at

         13  the Ferry Terminal we have been putting out, we put

         14  this brochure and the dedication on the back says,

         15  dedicated to the men and women of the Department of

         16  Transportation Ferry Division who work hard to keep

         17  our ferries going 24 hours a day.

         18                 And talk about an organization that

         19  has budget crisis, the Council on the Arts, you know

         20  how Arts organizations have been affected this last

         21  year, we have scrimped and saved to buy this, and we

         22  give this out free, and it is for everybody to

         23  enjoy.  It has a map of Staten Island with all the

         24  cultural, recreational attractions, and we encourage

         25  people to come by ferry. We have a walking tour of
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          2  St. George that we did all summer in conjunction

          3  with the New York City Convention and Visitors

          4  Bureau.

          5                 And I have to say that for the most

          6  part, the DOT and my wonderful friends here from the

          7  ferries, do an absolutely great job.  They help us

          8  get packages back and forth to and from the

          9  Whitehall Ferry Terminal, and that means a lot

         10  because we cannot drive on the ferries anymore.  But

         11  as a resident of Staten Island I have to tell you

         12  that we are limited even recently during the culture

         13  feast at Bryant Park that started at nine o'clock in

         14  the morning, we could not take the ferry to get to

         15  Bryant Park in Manhattan because of the timing of

         16  it.  We would have had to leave at six o'clock in

         17  the morning or 6:30, so we actually had to drive

         18  into the City, and that really is not something that

         19  we want to do.

         20                 So to promote tourism on Staten

         21  Island, to promote as Theo Dorian said, economic

         22  development here on Staten Island, we need to have

         23  the ferries running on a regular basis, and we need

         24  to have them running, and we need to have them clean

         25  and safe and staffed by very experienced personnel.
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          2                 One other thing that I want to

          3  mention, recently they instituted a new Brooklyn

          4  Ferry.  Now I am not a native Staten Islander, I am

          5  from Brooklyn.  And I thought to myself, how did

          6  they get the Brooklyn Ferry to be running, up and

          7  running so quickly, and I do not know the answer to

          8  that.  But I have a feeling it is by using their

          9  political clout.

         10                 And so I think now is the time that

         11  Staten Island has to stand up and say, the Brooklyn

         12  people had a ferry, they also have a subway.  Now we

         13  really do not have a subway, and it is going to cost

         14  a lot more than $3 million to build a subway.  So we

         15  need to have the ferry service frequently, and we

         16  need to have it.

         17                 Now Brooklyn Ferry is still going,

         18  they continue to have their ferry going back and

         19  forth from the Whitehall Station to Brooklyn.  Is it

         20  still going?

         21                 MR. RUSSO:  Yes, it is privately.

         22                 MS. COOMHS:  How often does it go?

         23                 MR. RUSSO:  It goes every half- hour

         24  during the rush hour.

         25                 MS. COOMHS:  So now there are people
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          2  in Brooklyn that can get it every half- hour in

          3  Brooklyn.  And ferry service is exploding all over

          4  New York City.  Look at what is going on, there is

          5  ferry service everywhere.  We are islands, there is

          6  a harbor. We believe in ferry service, we need ferry

          7  service, and we just need to have it more frequent.

          8  And I think that the DOT will actually see the light

          9  on this, they will see that this is a wonderful

         10  opportunity to not diminish service, but expand

         11  service.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         13  much.  I think the point of having the ferry connect

         14  Staten Island to Manhattan is a very valid point,

         15  because there is no bridge.  So you need to have a

         16  true link, a link that is, indeed, 24 hours a day.

         17  So I think that is a very important point.

         18                 And you know, a lot of people have

         19  spoken, rightfully so about the need for the ferry

         20  to bring people from Staten Island to Manhattan.

         21  And you touched upon the need for having the ferry

         22  to bring people from Manhattan to Staten Island. And

         23  I think that is really something that has been

         24  probably not paid enough attention to.  I think we

         25  want a ferry that goes both ways.  Well, let me say
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          2  that we want a ferry that allows people to go in

          3  both directions.  Okay, and so, you know there is

          4  nothing, we definitely want people to be able to get

          5  to their jobs in Manhattan.  But you know if we had

          6  a more reliable ferry, than we could probably get

          7  more economic development going on right here,

          8  because we would create jobs here.  And although, we

          9  want jobs for people on Staten Island, there is

         10  nothing, I do not see anything wrong with giving

         11  people in Manhattan and the other boroughs the

         12  opportunity to come work in Staten Island, I think

         13  that would be a good thing.  And there certainly

         14  would be more opportunity for this kind of

         15  development, this two- way development, if we had a

         16  reliable ferry that goes in both directions

         17  reliably.

         18                 So I think we should definitely pay

         19  more attention to that, because this is definitely

         20  an opportunity for citywide economic development.

         21                 Thank you very much for your time.

         22                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE 1:

         23  Can I just answer her question?  You wanted to know

         24  how they got that ferry up and running so quickly.

         25                 MS. COOMHS:  Yes.
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          2                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE 1:

          3    It was ours, and then they gave it away.  That is

          4  the professionalism of the men that work at the

          5  ferry.  That they were able to get that Brooklyn

          6  Ferry up and running within a week.

          7                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE 2:

          8    With all said, DOT - -

          9                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE 3:

         10    As soon as they had the money, they took the boat

         11  away.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  I would

         13  like to acknowledge that Assemblyman Matthew Mirones

         14  from Staten Island has joined us.  Thank you for

         15  coming here, Assemblyman.

         16                 And let me ask the next panel to join

         17  us at the witness table.  Louis Blois, Kevin Heath,

         18  and A.D. Coleman.  And let me ask the next panel to

         19  get ready to come up, Stephanie Cimino, Dan Chilton,

         20  and John Luisi.

         21                 Sure, a quick one, right.

         22                 MR. DORIAN:  This is just a quick

         23  remark, but I would like to point out for the

         24  benefit of anybody who has yet to testify, that DOT

         25  did not provide anybody to answer questions, and
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          2  that the one representative from the DOT choose to

          3  leave this room and not - -  She had to catch a

          4  boat, didn't she?

          5                 No, but seriously, I do not think

          6  that it is too much to ask, when we have dragged

          7  ourselves out on a night like this that, for

          8  instance, Tamara Coomhs' testimony was very

          9  compelling describing what the history of this

         10  service has been. And I would have liked very much

         11  for the DOT representative to have heard it and to

         12  have taken it back to her comrades.  And I think

         13  that then the Mayor's representative has also left

         14  us.

         15                 I think it is not too much to ask

         16  that these people hear our testimonies, and I hope

         17  that they will go out of their way to procure the

         18  transcripts so that they can hear what we all have

         19  to say, and that a tree falling in the forest, will

         20  make a noise.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Let me just say

         22  that the entire proceedings of this hearing are

         23  being transcripted, and so, I think it is perfectly

         24  valid for anybody who is part of a hearing to expect

         25  that all levels of government, City government are
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          2  privy and look at what happens at every single,

          3  public hearing.  And so I would expect that the DOT,

          4  you can hold them to that kind of accountability as

          5  well.

          6                 MR. COLEMAN:  Good evening.  I want

          7  to thank those involved in organizing this meeting

          8  and the City Council for having this meeting and

          9  hearing us on this issue.  My name is Alan Coleman.

         10  I am a freelance writer, teacher, and lecturer under

         11  the pen name, A.D. Coleman.  I write the Island

         12  Living Column for the Star Reporter Chain of

         13  Newspapers that some of you may see.  But I am here

         14  as tonight's private citizen and as a Staten Island

         15  resident.

         16                 Since I moved to Staten Island in

         17  1967, I have spent literally months of my life

         18  sitting and waiting late at night, early in the

         19  mornings, and on weekends in the ugly and badly

         20  managed terminals of the Staten Island Ferry.  From

         21  my standpoint, this represents an incalculable loss

         22  in personal and professional time.

         23                 Over the past three or five years of

         24  my residency here on Staten Island, the DOT has

         25  proven itself clearly and consistently incompetent
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          2  to coordinate the dependable schedule of the Staten

          3  Island Ferry with the widely erratic arrival and

          4  departure times of buses and trains that the Ferry

          5  Terminals both in Manhattan and Staten Island sides

          6  of this crucial link in the Transportation system.

          7                 During those same three and a half

          8  decades, this failure of the DOT has proved itself

          9  the single, greatest problem that my choosing to

         10  live here on Staten Island has presented in both my

         11  professional and personal spheres.  It also

         12  represents the face that they are hardest to

         13  overcome in persuading people that I know to visit

         14  Staten Island for social or cultural purposes.  And

         15  of course, in convincing them to consider living

         16  here.

         17                 I would simply like to add that one

         18  obvious solution to a number of the concerns raised

         19  by the now vanished DOT's spokesperson earlier,

         20  would be to commission and purchase two smaller

         21  ferries, smaller in class than the current ones to

         22  make the night ones as economical as possible.  And

         23  I am surprised that that proposal was not raised in

         24  her report to us, or her statement to us.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 MR. HEATH:  Good evening, Council

          3  members.  My name is Kevin Heath, and I appreciate

          4  the opportunity to testify before you and those

          5  people that are in the audience.

          6                 I guess, what I would like to do, is

          7  say quickly, I will be brief.  I have heard many

          8  people say many of the things I thought about

          9  speaking to, and probably in a much more eloquent

         10  way than I could, or certainly in a way that is

         11  better statistically supported than I could support

         12  it here tonight.

         13                 What I do want to say is that as a

         14  ferry rider for 23 years, and as a St. George

         15  resident for over 20 years, I find it to be

         16  outrageous that the City is considering going

         17  towards privatization.  And that we have to sit here

         18  and argue about, as many have said before me, the

         19  small amount of money involved in moving forward on

         20  30- minute headway, 24/7, it seems ridiculous and I

         21  am sure you appreciate that, and I am sure those who

         22  are sitting in the audience appreciate that.

         23                 The other think I want to say, for

         24  those people, I guess, Theo, you started to speak to

         25  this point just a minute ago. What people should
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          2  really understand is that in this kind of a hearing

          3  is that the Council members know the City agency

          4  involved has people here prepared to answer

          5  questions.  And in many cases for even Mayoral

          6  units, not just City agencies, Mayoral units with,

          7  in some cases, budgets of less than a million

          8  dollars, City Council members expect and receive

          9  people at this table that are prepared to answer

         10  questions for 20, 30, 40 minutes, an hour.  Is that

         11  not true, and upwards of two hours, three hours,

         12  sure, that is what goes on.

         13                 So I find it outrageous and insulting

         14  not only to the people of Staten Island, but to the

         15  City Council and the members of the Transportation

         16  Committee.

         17                 Thank you, and I will just leave it

         18  right there so that I am not taking anybody else's

         19  time.  Thank you.

         20                 MR. BLOIS:  Hi, I just want to make a

         21  few points that I have not heard made before.  I

         22  just wanted to say that I personally have run a

         23  campaign petitions and a number of times in the

         24  past, ten years, to try to improve ferry service,

         25  and I collected somewhere near a thousand petitions

                                                            77

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  each time during the Giuliani Administration, with

          3  no avail.  But if find it a very ironic in a day

          4  that we are spending billions of dollars to build

          5  new ferry terminals on each side of the New York

          6  Harbor, we are spending, we have got state- of- the-

          7  art waiting rooms and we still have the same third

          8  world service.  So I think it is an irony that needs

          9  to be pointed out.

         10                 But the one thing that the Department

         11  of Transportation, the representative did not

         12  address is the weekend population riding the ferry.

         13  And here we have all the cultural offerings of

         14  Manhattan, The New York Philharmonic, movies, and

         15  dancing places.  If you ever come home on a Saturday

         16  night or a Friday night, the ferry terminal there is

         17  a rush hour crowding waiting for a boat, and most

         18  often they piled into these little Alice Austen-

         19  class boats.  And I really feel embarrassed,

         20  especially for the tourists who are, this is their

         21  only ride on the Staten Island Ferry, and they are

         22  riding on a floating toilet, if you will forgive my

         23  expression.  So that certainly needs to be

         24  addressed.  And there is one potential source of

         25  revenue to increase the amount in Staten Island is
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          2  taking advantage of New York Culture.

          3                 Just one final point, I read an

          4  astonishing article, they were actually defending

          5  that position and that Staten Island causes so much

          6  usage of the subways on the Manhattan side, that

          7  this disproportionality (sic) was some how

          8  justified.  And I think perhaps that can be

          9  addressed as a potential source of funding for extra

         10  ferry service.

         11                 Thanks very much.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I think that was a

         13  very good point.  The fair share of transit monies

         14  for Staten Island residents.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  We are told

         16  to take our fair share of the burdens, whether it is

         17  the dump, or whether it is the overcrowded schools,

         18  or whether it is the crummy roads, or whether it is

         19  the lack of adequate sewers.  We are told that we

         20  have to bear our burden.  We know that on Staten

         21  Island we usually do more, and yet, we literally,

         22  myself and my two colleagues, Andy Lanza and Jim

         23  Oddo, we spend our days, all days trying to fight to

         24  even get close to fairness on many different issues,

         25  and this is one where it is quite clear and quite
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          2  apparent that we are not getting a fair share of

          3  basic, minimum service.

          4                 So I agree with you 100 percent, but

          5  I pledge to you that we work in a bipartisan way.

          6  This is not political at all, in a bipartisan way.

          7  It does not matter who the Mayor is, it does not

          8  matter what parties we are from, we work every day

          9  in trying to get the fair share.  And we are trying

         10  to do that here too.  And I pledge to you that we

         11  will continue to do that.

         12                 Thank you very much, gentlemen.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  If our

         14  next panel could join us, Stephanie Cimino, John

         15  Luisi, and Dan Chilton.  And the next panel can

         16  prepare to come up, next Debi Rose, Anne Noel Bayer,

         17  and Laura Brose.

         18                 Good evening, thanks for coming.

         19                 MS. CIMINO:  Good evening.  My name

         20  is Stephanie Cimino, and I am a ferry rider, I live

         21  in Staten Island.  And I just wanted to be a witness

         22  to what I experience mainly when I take the ferry on

         23  weekends is what really bothers me.  I do not feel

         24  that that has been addressed enough.

         25                 It is packed; there are a lot of
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          2  people who work on weekends.  They commute just as

          3  regularly on weekends as people who work during the

          4  week, and yet, they have to wait an hour.  I work at

          5  a college on Staten Island that also, its main

          6  campuses in Manhattan, and people commute back and

          7  forth, they have a lot of trouble, because they have

          8  to wait a whole hour.  If they miss that boat, and I

          9  know a lot of people who do, they are waiting in the

         10  terminal for an hour, or they are late for their

         11  classes, they are late for work, and I have seen

         12  this happen on Saturdays, it happens on Sundays,

         13  people work on weekends.  You know people do not

         14  just work during the week.  They commute, people

         15  work in shops, they work in all kinds of jobs on the

         16  weekends.  Nurses, right, there are a lot of jobs

         17  for people who are very inconvenienced.

         18                 I, myself, I do not usually have to

         19  work on weekends in Manhattan, but my social life is

         20  a wreck because of the ferry situation.  I do not go

         21  places when I know I have to wait a whole hour that

         22  there is that chance.  It has happened to me before,

         23  I have spent an hour in the terminal, and I do not

         24  want to do it.  It is horrible, I have friends who

         25  will not come to visit me, because they do not want
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          2  to wait an hour, and really it is not fair.

          3                 Another thing is when you take a

          4  ferry in the evenings or the mornings on a weekend,

          5  you see the ferry terminal is packed, the ferries

          6  are packed.  So please do not overlook this, do not

          7  talk about just late nights.  On weekends people

          8  want to take the ferry, and the ridership is

          9  astronomical.  The terminal is packed, people are

         10  standing waiting for the ferry, they are standing

         11  all the way, the whole terminal is full of people,

         12  and the ferry boat, itself, sometimes there is no

         13  place to sit.  It is very, very crowded on weekends.

         14    And there are lots of tourists, and the tourists,

         15  some of them I am sure they turn away because they

         16  do not want to wait a whole hour for a boat.

         17                 And one last thing I wanted to say, I

         18  was pretty horrified reading in the Staten Island

         19  Register about New York waterways being given,

         20  something, millions of dollars in federal funds to

         21  run their ferries, when we are not receiving money.

         22  I read that they are receiving money that was

         23  supposed to be given to help the situation after

         24  9/11.  And meanwhile, New York waterways is

         25  receiving this money and they are charging people
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          2  three to five dollars to take their ferries.  So

          3  this needs to be looked into.

          4                 Okay, thank you.

          5                 MR. LUISI:  Thank you, Council

          6  members for coming to Staten Island to listen to our

          7  concerns, fellow commuters, my neighbors.  I am John

          8  Luisi.  I live in St. George.  I moved to this

          9  neighborhood many years ago from another part of

         10  Staten Island in order to have ready access to the

         11  ferry.

         12                 Over the years, I have learned that

         13  DOT really does not take us seriously.  I am not

         14  surprised that they only sent one person who cannot

         15  answer any questions.  I am not surprised that she

         16  is gone.  At this point, I am preaching to the

         17  choir, and if the rest of the choir is half as

         18  hungry as I am, I can understand and I will be very,

         19  very brief.

         20                 But part of what I would like to

         21  really point out and emphasize without repeating

         22  what too many of my fellow commuters and neighbors

         23  have said, is that, we use the ferry as our

         24  lifeline.  DOT treats us as if the ferry is nothing

         25  more than a tourist attraction, and something that
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          2  needs to be maintained during regular rush hours.

          3  They do not realize how much St. George, in

          4  particular, and the rest of Staten Island really

          5  relies on the ferry to link us to the rest of the

          6  City.

          7                 I would love to see what DOT would

          8  propose to have happen, if after some Yankee game

          9  goes into late innings, the Number 4 train unloads,

         10  and we have hundreds of people in the ferry terminal

         11  as we often do after a late night Yankee game, and

         12  there is a boat there that can handle 36 people.

         13  They are going to start handing out tickets telling

         14  them you have to wait a half- hour, you have to wait

         15  an hour, you have to wait an hour and a half, it is

         16  joker.

         17                 The weekend service is horrible, we

         18  cannot take advantage of much of what the City has

         19  to offer, unless we drive in.  I do have a car, I am

         20  lucky, I will drive in, you cannot disconnect me

         21  from the rest of the City that easily.  I feel bad

         22  driving, and I would much rather take a boat, it is

         23  much more relaxing, leaving the driving to somebody

         24  else and being able the relax, and hop on mass

         25  transit on the other side.
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          2                 So I think that we absolutely,

          3  positively need the additional service, and I thank

          4  Mike McMahon for forcing DOT to do through a Council

          5  bill what they have not done over the years that we

          6  have demanded it as a community.  Thank you very

          7  much, Mike, I appreciate it.

          8                 And further, I think that the whole

          9  concept of privatization would be an unmitigated

         10  disaster.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 MR. CHILTON:  My name is Dan Chilton,

         13  and I am no longer a ferry rider.  I live in St.

         14  George.  I used to go to classes regularly in

         15  Manhattan and pay $120 a month for training classes.

         16    I used to go to Manhattan on the weekends and

         17  enjoy the night life there.  After about five or six

         18  times of getting to the train on time, but not

         19  getting to the ferry on time, and waiting 55 minutes

         20  in an unpleasant atmosphere, after about five or six

         21  times, I kind of got away from that.  I found other

         22  ways to get Manhattan or other things to do instead

         23  of going to Manhattan.

         24                 There have been other changes in the

         25  ferry, and I do not go to Manhattan much at all.
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          2  And so, I do not depend on the ferry, my life does

          3  not depend on it, my job does not depend on it. But

          4  I think there are in marginal ways, other jobs that

          5  depend on me, and they are suffering because I do

          6  not go there any more.  I cannot depend on the ferry

          7  to get me home late at night, and I cannot depend on

          8  it to get me to my classes at the exact time that I

          9  need to be there, it is rather difficult.

         10                 And I think some of the people who

         11  have left here tonight, I am a hopeful, optimistic

         12  person, that maybe they care about this, but they

         13  have got to catch a boat home.  And you know, the

         14  service is not that good, and they better leave now

         15  or they are going to be getting home late.

         16                 That is the dilemma we have.  I

         17  believe, and I hope that people who are reading this

         18  in a transcript will believe me that even a marginal

         19  increase or decrease in service will change the

         20  ridership.  I am fascinated by this number of what

         21  they are calling a demand for service.  I do not

         22  demand service, but count me among the riders who

         23  will happily get on the boat and go to Manhattan if

         24  service is improved.  I will happily go to the

         25  theater, and the art, and the martial art classes,
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          2  and the night life, and the astonishing restaurants

          3  there, if only I can depend on getting home and

          4  getting to my destination at the right time.

          5                 One more quick comment.  Some of my

          6  relatives are coming over to Manhattan next year for

          7  a family reunion.  And I heard some very interesting

          8  things about New York.  Oh, it is a crime ridden

          9  city, it is full of cockroaches, and the hotels are

         10  dirty, and I am thinking, well, maybe you heard some

         11  bad things from things that were left over from

         12  years past.  But I assured her that New York is

         13  changing, it is getting better, it is cleaner, it is

         14  safer, the transportation is better.  But what do I

         15  tell her about the ferries?  Well it is the City

         16  that never sleeps, except, you know, the ferries

         17  they take naps every hour at night.  You know, and

         18  would not it be nice, if in ten years you could say

         19  yes, we have had excellent service for the last 10

         20  years and you can depend on it.  And even if the

         21  subway is late getting you back to the terminal, you

         22  will be able to wait in a clean terminal, not for a

         23  very long time, and you will get home at a decent

         24  hour.

         25                 And that is my hope, and I thank you
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          2  very much for listening to me, for having this

          3  hearing here.  And hopefully, we will succeed.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  A

          5  comment from Councilman McMahon.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  I just want

          7  you to known the weekend service is addressed in the

          8  bill as well, but you are correct in pointing out

          9  that we just got to make that part of the debate

         10  because it is critical.  And really, you know, if

         11  you look at the numbers at eight o'clock at night or

         12  ten o'clock in the morning I think that it blows

         13  them out of the water, and that is what we have to

         14  do.

         15                 So, but you are right, we will make

         16  that a very important part of the debate from here

         17  on in.  Thank you very much, thank you guys, thank

         18  you, John.

         19                 We also want to mention that we were

         20  joined by Assemblyman Matthew Mirones, he had to

         21  leave, but we want to thank him for coming as well.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I would like to ask

         23  the next panel to join us, Debi Rose, and Noel

         24  Bayer, and Laura Brose.  And after this panel we

         25  have our final panel for the evening, Dan Icolari
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          2  and Donna Florio.  Welcome.

          3                 MS. ROSE:  Good evening, Councilman

          4  Liu, Chairman, and to Councilman McMahon and Lanza,

          5  and the Transportation Committee.  I first want to

          6  thank you so much for holding this hearing on Staten

          7  Island so we did not have to take the ferry to

          8  testify.  And then I want to say that I came here

          9  tonight not really to testify, but to listen to what

         10  the commuters have to say, because I have been

         11  fortunate in that I work in Staten Island and I have

         12  not had to put up with the commuting problems, but I

         13  have relatives that have.

         14                 So, but it has been my experience

         15  that only when we come together and speak in one

         16  voice, in one large, loud voice, are our issues

         17  really, truly addressed.  And I want to thank

         18  Councilman McMahon and the other Council members for

         19  introducing this legislation.  But it is time for us

         20  to emphatically, irrevocably, and loudly state that

         21  we want half- hour service, 24/7, and that we do not

         22  want it privatized.

         23                 After all, I do not know if you are

         24  aware, Councilman Liu, but there have been several

         25  experiments with private ferry service, and none of
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          2  them have worked.  And so we do not want to leave

          3  something that is so important to this community to

          4  an experiment that we know has already failed.

          5                 And then I want to say that this is

          6  Blue Collar community.  We have people who work

          7  shifts, they go to work four to twelve, and because

          8  there is no coordinated effort to make sure that the

          9  train meets the boat, or that the bus meets the

         10  boat, the people miss the ferry.  And so you are

         11  getting to the ferry at 1:00 a.m., and then you are

         12  missing that boat because of the lack of

         13  coordination of services, and you are there until

         14  two.  So you have added an additional hour to an

         15  already long day.

         16                 And there was a survey in the

         17  newspaper that said, Staten Islanders are throughout

         18  the United States a community that commutes, put

         19  more time in commuting than other communities.  And

         20  so a decrease in service would only add to our

         21  already long trek. And I just wanted to mention also

         22  that when the transportation authority says that

         23  they are doing surveys, and they come up with these

         24  strange numbers that there were only 26 people on

         25  the boat, and your standing in that ferry terminal,
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          2  there is not a seat for you to sit in, there are

          3  people all over you, and you get on the boat, you

          4  know that there are more than 26 people.  They have

          5  a history of doing their surveys at a time when, it

          6  is like a holiday.  A holiday is a holiday at three

          7  o'clock in the morning and this fog or whatever, it

          8  is just not an appropriate accounting. And I think

          9  you need to look at their data again and see really

         10  when they did the survey and got the numbers.

         11                 And then my last point is that we are

         12  an island; duh!  We need ferries, you know, the

         13  ferry is not an ancillary service, it is a necessary

         14  service.  And so we have people who come from

         15  neighborhoods where there are no express buses, and

         16  if there are express bus service, it is $3.00 to

         17  take an express bus.  If you want to drive your car,

         18  which the Mayor is now trying to get as many people

         19  to refrain from doing, but if you take your car to

         20  go over any of our bridges is $6.00 to go into New

         21  Jersey from the Goethels, Bayonne or Outer Bridge to

         22  go off of Staten Island, and $7.00 on the Verrazano.

         23    We are being, this is economic in equity, and so

         24  our communities are being taxed, you know, beyond

         25  what other communities are taxed.  And so we have
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          2  one method of egress and access to Staten Island

          3  that is free.  And we would like to maintain that

          4  service so that it is convenient, and so that people

          5  can maintain their economic viability.  They can get

          6  to work, they can get home within a reasonable

          7  amount of time, have some sort of quality of life,

          8  and then be prepared to go back to work the next

          9  day.

         10                 Thank you, thank you so much.

         11                 MS. BROSE:  Thank you very much.

         12  Those of us who live in District 49 who followed the

         13  campaign contest between Councilman Mike McMahon and

         14  loyal opposition Debi Rose, know that one of the

         15  McMahon's campaign promises were to increase ferry

         16  service, and that perhaps contributed to his

         17  election victory.  And what I want to say is that

         18  McMahon, many of the salient issues concerning the

         19  bill you have, have already been brought up much

         20  more eloquently and knowledgeably by the other panel

         21  presenters, but there has been one issue which you

         22  have not discussed in you campaign literature and

         23  your office publicity with your constituents.  That

         24  issue is, have you engaged in any dialogue with the

         25  MTA to coordinate bus and train schedules
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          2  logistically with the proposed increased ferry

          3  service during the non- peak hours?  Okay, that

          4  certainly is an issue to be brought up in this

          5  venue.

          6                 And another thing which was really a

          7  question for the Intergovernmental Liaison, Ms.

          8  Horsch, who left earlier, if the ridership during

          9  weekends and off- peak hours is as low as she

         10  claims, how come the DOT invested in the three

         11  larger boats she mentioned when she gave her speech?

         12                 Thank you very much.

         13                 MS. BAYER:  I have to go, I have to

         14  catch a bus.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very much

         16  for your eloquent comments.  Let me just very

         17  briefly address one of the questions that was asked,

         18  which was,  has there been any effort to make sure

         19  that there is coordination between the different

         20  modes of transportation?  And in fact, there have

         21  been discussions, in fact, that is one of the

         22  reasons why the DOT mentioned that there would be

         23  all sorts of increased costs from the other agencies

         24  as well. And of course, that is not really an

         25  argument, you cannot say that it is going to cost
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          2  everybody else more, and therefore, we cannot do it,

          3  because we are thinking of everybody else.  I mean

          4  that is just not a strong argument.

          5                 But of course we are looking for not

          6  just improving service in one part of the trip of a

          7  commuter, but for the beginning to the end.  And so

          8  certainly, coordination is of top priority here.

          9                 We have our final panel.  And I will

         10  mention that a representative from the Mayor's

         11  Office and the DOT is still with us, and so these

         12  comments are still very important.  Our final panel

         13  is Dan Icolari and Donna Florio, please join us.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  And while

         15  they take their seats, I just want to say, as I said

         16  before, that our support here is interparty across

         17  different party lines.  And also, with Ms. Rose and

         18  myself, it is intraparty.  This is not a political

         19  issue, this is a community issue.

         20                 MS. FLORIO:  I know that brevity is

         21  the soul of wit, I am going to try to be witty so

         22  that everyone can get home.  My name is Donna

         23  Florio.  I am a third generation Staten Islander.

         24  And I think my story is sort of typical of why we

         25  need the ferry service here.  I took on three run
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          2  down houses in St. George over the last four years.

          3  I drove out the people who were in them, none of

          4  whom you wanted as your neighbors, trust me.  I

          5  renovated them and I now have eight units.  To give

          6  you an idea of the kind of people who are now living

          7  in St. George, I have a lawyer, a publisher, a

          8  professor, a medical technician, a music editor, a

          9  human rights worker, I, myself, am a teacher.  They

         10  all go through or to Lower Manhattan, every single

         11  one of us, that is why they are here, that is the

         12  only reason they are here, good, affordable housing.

         13    They shop here, they have brought their friends to

         14  live here.  We are talking about cost, I would like

         15  to calculate the cost that bring, that comes to the

         16  community from bringing those kind of people into

         17  Staten Island and their friends.

         18                 I am speaking as a businesswoman, I

         19  have to have that transportation to keep my business

         20  expanding.  That is all there is to it.  And you

         21  know, as a Native New Yorker, I see a lot of mass

         22  transit between all the other four boroughs.  I do

         23  not know now how many people are on the A train at

         24  two o'clock in the morning.  I have a feeling maybe

         25  a few less than they might be saying.
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          2                 All right, again, as a third

          3  generation, we have always been the third world of

          4  New York City, and I think that we just have to stop

          5  it, I really do.

          6                 The last point that I would like to

          7  make is I am a Kayaku (phonetic), I am a White Water

          8  Guide, and I have done some boating around this

          9  water, and I have a lot of respect for those guys

         10  who run those boats.  This Harbor is dangerous, I do

         11  not want to be in a small boat on this Harbor, that

         12  is the truth.

         13                 Thank you very much.

         14                 MR. ICOLARI:  Good evening.  My name

         15  is Dan Icolari. I too will try to be witty.  I am a

         16  free lance writer, and I live in St. George.  I want

         17  to thank the Transportation Committee for holding

         18  its hearing in the location that makes it possible

         19  for more Staten Islanders to attend.

         20                 I want to suggest to you that the

         21  issues we are discussing are straightforward.  They

         22  involve words like parity, equity and fairness.

         23  Because the fact is from 1970 to 2000, according to

         24  the Staten Island Borough President's Study on over

         25  development, our population increased 50 percent,
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          2  and from 1950 to 2000 by 132 percent.  We can no

          3  longer be dismissed as some backwater, where you

          4  could locate undesirable institutions and noxious

          5  uses.  We are New York City's only growing Borough.

          6  We are New York State's fastest growing county, and

          7  a county nearing the half million mark in

          8  population, that is a half million people.  We want

          9  24 mass, 24- hour mass transit access to the 24-

         10  hour city that is ours, as much as it is the

         11  Bronx's, or Brooklyn's, or Queens. The same quality

         12  of access that resident of those boroughs enjoy. For

         13  Staten Islanders that quality of access means ferry

         14  service that operates, at least, every 30 minutes,

         15  24 hours a day, every day of the week.

         16                 I urge you to support the legislation

         17  that mandates this equitable access as introduced by

         18  Staten Island's three Council representative.

         19                 Thank you very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         21  much.  You represented our last panel, and thanks

         22  for your patience.  And I know it is always

         23  frustrating to be the last panel up, but it

         24  certainly is not the least.

         25                 Council Member McMahon.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Again, just

          3  in closing on behalf of the people of Staten Island,

          4  we want to thank you, Chairman John Liu.  I think

          5  that it is a, as I said outside, Chairman John Liu

          6  is the first Asian- American to be elected to public

          7  office in New York, and I am quite certain that he

          8  is going to be the first either Asian- American

          9  Mayor of the City, or Governor of the State of New

         10  York, perhaps both.  But certainly the people of

         11  Staten Island and the ferry riders, it is true, by

         12  you agreeing to, and this is not a common

         13  occurrence, folks, let me tell you, that a Council

         14  hearing is held in the evening out in the Borough

         15  like this, and it is something that we have to be

         16  grateful for.  It helps us in this ongoing battle,

         17  it is an ongoing battle. We are, I said before, we

         18  are in the game, we have not rounded second yet, but

         19  we are still in the game, we are still running the

         20  basis, and we have to keep up the pressure with your

         21  work and the work of my colleagues Andrew Lanza and

         22  Jim Oddo, and under the guidance of Chairman Liu.  I

         23  am hopeful that we will prevail, but the battle is

         24  certainly not over.

         25                 But thank you all very much, and
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          2  thanks to you all for coming.  Let me ask Councilman

          3  Lanza to say a few words.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA:  Sure, I want

          5  to thank all of you, as well, and join my colleagues

          6  here for coming out and making our voices heard.

          7                 For years, working in the City,

          8  people used to joker when I would tell them that I

          9  had to catch a train out of Great Kills and then a

         10  ferry, and then depending on what was happening

         11  Downtown, a bus or a subway, they used to look at me

         12  and say, what are you, Lewis and Clark, I mean where

         13  do you live?  And so many people talked about

         14  missing that boat, and so many times having those

         15  doors close in front of your face, you feel like the

         16  life is just sucked out of you, because you know

         17  that that means another hour, hour and a half, two

         18  hours.  And I thought back then, please, would

         19  somebody do something about this.

         20                 And somebody is, and I have to thank

         21  my colleague, Councilman McMahon for doing something

         22  about this, for bringing this idea, for having us

         23  join him.  And Councilman Liu, he has got to go back

         24  to Queens right now.  I think he has experienced

         25  some of the Lewis and Clark trip on the way here.
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          2  And you know, as Councilman McMahon said, this is

          3  not ordinary, this is extraordinary.  And between

          4  what Councilman McMahon has done, what Chairman Liu

          5  has done, I believe that we are going to get there.

          6                 I thank the Mayor for having a

          7  representative here, a Staten Islander, and for DOT,

          8  and they are listening, believe me, they have

          9  listened to you, and they have heard the plea, and I

         10  think we are going to get there with this leadership

         11  right here, and your leadership.

         12                 Thank you very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I will be just

         14  another half minute.  First, I want to thank Andy

         15  Lanza for being really one of the most committed

         16  members of the Transportation Committee.  He knows

         17  how important it is for Staten Islanders, for the

         18  people he represents.  So he has been diligently

         19  attending the entirety of all of our meeting of the

         20  Transportation Committee.

         21                 And Mike McMahon, he is not a member

         22  of the Transportation Committee, because he really

         23  has got his hands full. He is the Chairman of the

         24  Solid Waste Committee of - -

         25                 ALL:  He is doing a great job.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  That is right.  And

          3  that really has, it has taken up so much of, I do

          4  not think that he necessarily thought that he would

          5  become Chairman of such a substantial Committee,

          6  when he was elected.  So, it actually is a bonus,

          7  but certainly want to thank him for his tremendously

          8  hard work.

          9                 And lastly, I want to thank all of

         10  you for being here.  It has been a relatively long

         11  meeting.  I saw many of you standing out in the rain

         12  when I came out of the terminal at 10 minutes after

         13  6:00, and I know you had already been standing in

         14  the rain for quite a long time, and you are still

         15  here at the end of this hearing.  So it is really

         16  the dedication of all of you people that is going to

         17  move this issue forward, and it should be moved

         18  forward.

         19                 So once again, thanks everybody for

         20  coming out to this hearing.

         21                 All right, this meeting is officially

         22  closed.  Thank you.

         23                 (Hearing concluded at 8:55 p.m.)
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